
















Doug Irvine

Sylvan Stuart Ltd, Old Rayne, INSCH, Aberdeenshire, Scotland. AB52 6RX.
Tel: +44(0)1464 851208
Fax: +44(0)1464 851202
Website: www.sylvanstuart.com

From: Negar Maydanchi <negar.maydanchi@aberdeenshire.gov.uk> 

Sent: Monday, October 9, 2023 9:35 AM

To: Doug Irvine <doug@sylvanstuart.com>

Cc: Helen Atkinson <helen.atkinson@aberdeenshire.gov.uk>; Planning Online 

<planningonline@aberdeenshire.gov.uk>

Subject: RE: APP/2023/0889- Erection of Dwellinghouse and Retrospective Ground Based Solar 

Panels- Site At Berwick Wood, Hatton of Fintray

Good morning,

Thank you for your recent email and sharing the information. I am sorry for delayed response.

Having discussed the proposal and the recent information with the wider team, the planning service 

is of the opinion that the additional information does not override the development plan and our 

recommendation would remain to refuse planning permission. 

Please be advised that you cannot request that the item be presented to GAC directly as this initially 

needs to go through the member notification system with a refusal recommendation. However, 

members would have the opportunity to pull the item to committee and may take a different view 

to the Planning Service. 

You will be informed of the date that the report is sent to Local Ward Members for further 

consultation by the planning service in due course.

Kind regards,

Negar Maydanchi

Planner (Development Management)

Planning and Economy

Environment and Infrastructure 

Aberdeenshire Council

Skype: 01467469920

Email: negar.maydanchi@aberdeenshire.gov.uk

Please note normal working hours-Monday to Friday 9am- 5pm

Please remember to submit all planning applications, including revised drawings and additional 

supporting information via the National ePlanning Portal

Website: https://www.aberdeenshire.gov.uk/planning/

Keep up to date online with any changes to Planning Services 

Your feedback is important to us and helps us to improve our service we value your comments.

Freedom of Information request: Please send your enquiry to foi@aberdeenshire.gov.uk
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From: Doug Irvine <doug@sylvanstuart.com> 

Sent: Friday, September 22, 2023 12:30 PM

To: Negar Maydanchi <negar.maydanchi@aberdeenshire.gov.uk>

Subject: RE: APP/2023/0889- Erection of Dwellinghouse and Retrospective Ground Based Solar 

Panels- Site At Berwick Wood, Hatton of Fintray

Good afternoon Negar,

Further to your email of 1 September, we strongly dispute your contention that that the presence of 

a residential worker is not essential, as this not only ignores severe weather events that have 

occurred since these operations commenced in 2018, but also fundamental animal welfare 

issues. On that basis your request for information on current residential accommodation available 

within the vicinity of the site is not relevant, but is in any event provided below. I also note that you 

appear to ignore the clear policy intent of NPF4, particularly Sustainable Places under Part 2 of 

National Planning Policy for Local Development Plans.

to R1.2 as referred to at R2.2, as it ignores the fourth bullet point stating what is permitted 

development:
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I maintain that on-site residential accommodation is required in any event, and note you are making 

This established business (for which annual accounts are available) is becoming unviable as it cannot 

meet statutory animal welfare requirements due to the workers being unable to safely access the 

site in severe weather conditions. The applicants are currently having to restrict their livestock 

holding to late spring, summer and early autumn because of increasing weather related lack of 

access, as they cannot now carry livestock there over winter. I note in the addendum below the 

regular occurrence of extreme climate events since 2018.

The applicants currently live in a leased apartment at Cothal with a below market level rent on a 

lease which terminates in June 2024. Their income is modest, but they have sufficient funds to build 

a 120m² 3-

maintenance requirements thus minimal running costs. They intend to run the house off-grid and 

utilise photovoltaic panels combined with battery storage and no other mains connections. This 

proposal will make their current operations at least zero carbon with the intent of developing them 

further to be significantly carbon negative.

The labour requirement report submitted refers to publications by the U.K. Farm Classification 

Working Party, 2004, and The Farm Management Handbook 2021/22. Both these documents can 

only be retrospective and regarded as guidance based on area based calculations for the various 

onsite activities encompassing fruit and vegetable market gardening, livestock farming and forestry 

activities. The Full Time Equivalent requirement of 1.1 is not in dispute, but to suggest that 
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silviculture should be excluded from this appears in direct contradiction of planning policy where 

forestry operations can solely be used to justify related onsite residential accommodation.

Your interpretation of policy suggests there would be no justification for residential accommodation 

on a 100 Ha arable-only farm. I note that this is the average size of a U.K. farm, whereas in Europe 

that is 6Ha and activities are vastly more labour intensive per hectare. The increasing frequency of 

severe climate events also impacts significantly on the need for onsite residency for the market 

gardening activities where prompt remedial measures are required. Likewise, there are also issues 

with deer, rabbit and pigeon depredation. 

Your response to date takes no cognisance of NPF4 Part 2 - NPP Policy 1 to reduce emissions and 

adapt for impacts of climate change and Policies 2 and 3 to enhance biodiversity, which almost every 

using nature based solutions, such as forestry foraging pigs. Cherrypicking the FTE 1.1 labour 

breakdown to exclude forestry activities is not a justifiable application of policy, and is entirely 

unjustifiable in relation to livestock husbandry.

We request that you re-examine your view on this application in light of the further information 

contained herewith. If you maintain your previously expressed view, the applicants request that 

their application go forward for determination to the full Garioch Area Committee on the basis that 

your indisputably controversial interpretation of policy should be examined in public by elected 

members.

We aim to submit further supporting information on Monday 25th September. We will be pleased to 

provide any further information you may request.

Regards

Doug Irvine

Sylvan Stuart Ltd, Old Rayne, INSCH, Aberdeenshire, Scotland. AB52 6RX.
Tel: +44(0)1464 851208
Fax: +44(0)1464 851202
Website: www.sylvanstuart.com

Addendum

1. Severe weather events since 2018 that have had direct effect on Berwick Wood produce.

Sep 2018 Storm Ali (amber warning for wind)

Aug 2020 Thunderstorms/flash flooding

Feb 2021 Storm Darcy (Snow)

Nov 2021 Storm Arwen (wind red warning)

Jan 2022 Storm Malik (wind amber warning)

Jan 2022 - Storm Corrie (wind amber warning)

Nov 2022 Heavy rain/flooding

Jan 2023 - Snow

Feb 2023 Storm Otto (wind amber warning)

2. Currently available local property with 4km

Location Description Price over EPC rating

Denmill 4-bed semi-detached E

Hatton of Fintray 4-bed semi-detached F

Hatton of Fintray 4-bed detached D

Hatton of Fintray 4-bed detached D

Kinmuck 5-bed detached C
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Kinmuck 4-bed semi-detached £215,000 E

Cothal 5-bed detached £325,000 F

Newmachar 7-bed detached £450,000 E

Cothal 5-bed detached £465,000 D

Overton 5-bed detached £450,000 F

3. Narrative from Mhairi Player (applicant)

I was an occupational therapist for 10 years specialising in paediatrics and outdoor therapy. A series 

of bone tumours meant that I could no longer continue my career in the public sector. I began 

growing again as a way of compensating for the loss of income due to my illness and found that the 

benefits of outdoor activity combined with a higher quality diet due to access to fresh seasonal 

organically produced fruit and veg allowed me to regain my wellbeing, added my rehabilitation and 

allowed me to return to some form of employment. To continue to manage my long-term health 

needs I began to work alongside my father on his woodland - Berwick Woods in Hatton of Fintray. In 

2018 when he retired he passed full management over to me of the woodland. At this point I have 

started to grow veg and fruit on the woodland and was using volunteers to help develop a social 

prescribing nature- based business. In order for the business to move forward infrastructure such as 

water, power, shelter, protected growing space and an access road needed to be completed. While 

this was occurring I worked part-time on the woodland project, part-time for a community garden 

and part- time as a lecturer for Robert Gordon university. The infrastructure was 60% complete by 

March 2020 when the UK went into lockdown.

During lockdown, as food was required locally, we diverted our attention to supplying as many local 

people, small businesses and food hubs as possible. We added caterpillar and poly tunnels as quickly 

as possible and expanded our growing space. At the end of 2021 we were supplying 8 local 

businesses, 2 food hubs and 40 domestic customers. We were heavily hit by the storms in the winter 

2021/2022 which included storm Arwen. We lost our main polytunnel and all our caterpillar tunnels 

were uncovered so that we lost all our winter and over winter crop. Alongside this 2022 saw a 

change in consumer buying patterns. Concerns of rise in costs of living and problems with long 

supply chains. We have spent the last year changing our selling models in response to these changes. 

We have established a fairer model of selling called a community supported agriculture scheme and 

we have focused on production of our raw materials for growing and on creating a closed loop farm 

system (one that provides its own fertility rather than buying in expensive and often harmful inputs) 

which is better for the climate and more economically sustainable. We have an electric van, an 

onsite bore hole and off grid solar panels again to help met the zero-carbon agenda required by the 

Scottish government but also to improve the sustainability of our woodland farm. We are presently 

clearing the timber that fell during the storms previously mentioned which will allow us to meet our 

biodiversity targets, help with carbon sequestration and add more economical revenues and 

opportunities within the business.

In 2023 the Good Food Nation Bill became the Good Food Nation Act which require good food to be 

accessible to all people in Scotland. As part of this Aberdeenshire council has formed a fair food 

partnership to be able to tackle the issues around food which stop it being accessible to all. Our 

business forms and its direct selling/ short chain models form an important part of this.

Explanation of why it is essential to live on the Farm.

Our pigs are always kept outdoors, and need fed twice daily. They also need to be checked a 

minimum twice daily which would increase in Summer or winter. Pigs cannot easily loose heat (they 

do not sweat) and require lots of water to allow them to create wallows to allow them to regulate 

their temperature.

We have been monitoring access to the farm, and as of yet, no winter period has allowed us daily 

access even from the nearest village which is clearly an animal welfare issue. In order to be viable 

financially, ecologically and sustainably we need to breed pigs ourselves and have year-round pork 

stocks. This will enable us to supply a constant product to our direct consuming customers or the 

local businesses we supply to. This is not a matter of expansion this is a matter of viability, which 

clearly answers the question of why it is vital to live on the farm.
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From: Negar Maydanchi <negar.maydanchi@aberdeenshire.gov.uk> 

Sent: Friday, September 1, 2023 2:46 PM

To: Doug Irvine <doug@sylvanstuart.com>

Subject: RE: APP/2023/0889- Erection of Dwellinghouse and Retrospective Ground Based Solar 

Panels- Site At Berwick Wood, Hatton of Fintray

Good afternoon Dough,

Thanks for the new submission. 

previous email dated 11th July .

I note that business growth is the intention of the applicant, but this is not sufficient as this must be 

evidenced by the existing livestock or landholding that there is an essential need for an 

accommodation within the immediate vicinity of the place of employment.

accommodation available within the area as required by Policy R1 of ALDP2023.

The existing operation, therefore, does not justify agricultural need for erection of a dwelling house 

and sadly, the Planning Service are unable to support the application.

As was previously stated, this would be referred to the Local Members in the first instance for 

consideration with a recommendation of a refusal. However, you may however wish to withdraw 

the application at this stage. 

Could you please therefore provide confirmation on how you wish to proceed in writing?

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

.
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Your feedback is important to us and helps us to improve our service we value your comments.

Freedom of Information request: Please send your enquiry to foi@aberdeenshire.gov.uk

From: Doug Irvine <doug@sylvanstuart.com> 

Sent: Tuesday, August 22, 2023 9:34 AM

To: Negar Maydanchi <negar.maydanchi@aberdeenshire.gov.uk>

Subject: RE: APP/2023/0889- Erection of Dwellinghouse and Retrospective Ground Based Solar 

Panels- Site At Berwick Wood, Hatton of Fintray

Morning Negar,

I have uploaded a supplementary letter to the online portal from Allathan Associates in response to 

your comments below. We hope this addresses your comments below, better illustrates the work 

going on at Berwick Wood Produce ( https://berwick-wood-produce.ooooby.org/) and emphasises 

how the business is currently restricted by not living on site.

Best regards

Doug Irvine

From: Negar Maydanchi <negar.maydanchi@aberdeenshire.gov.uk> 

Sent: Tuesday, July 11, 2023 4:57 PM

To: Doug Irvine <doug@sylvanstuart.com>

Cc: berwickwoodproduce@gmail.com

Subject: Re: APP/2023/0889- Erection of Dwellinghouse and Retrospective Ground Based Solar 

Panels- Site At Berwick Wood, Hatton of Fintray

Good afternoon, 

I refer to the above planning application. 

The principle of development will be assessed against Policy R1.2 accommodation within the 

immediate vicinity of the place of employment required for a worker in a primary industry, where 

the presence of a worker is essential to the efficient operation of the enterprise, and there is no 

suitable alternative residential accommodation available. 

Based on the labour requirement report submitted along the application ,the farm operation of 

Berwick wood has a total standard labour requirement for 2,094 SLRs . The calculation demonstrates 

that a substantial hour is related to the level of labour needed for forestry work and planting activity 

and 131 SLRs for Pig activity . Whilst there may be need for full time worker on the farm for this type 

activities, it is not essential to live on the farm.

In addition, sufficient information is not provided regarding the current residential accommodation 

available within the vicinity of the site. It appears that there are homes for rent and sale in Hatton of 

Fintray, 1.48 km to the south, which is not a significant journey for any employee to get to this 

location.
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Therefore, this proposal fails to meet the essential need justification for accommodation associated 

with a primary industry worker, and therefore does not comply with Policy R1 and R2 of the 

Aberdeenshire Local Development Plan 2023 as well as Policy 17 of National Planning Framework.

At the outset, the application would go to Local Ward members with a refusal 
recommendation. However, the members would have an opportunity to take a different view 
and advise for referral to the Area Committee for further assessment. 

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

This e-mail may contain privileged information intended solely for the use of the individual to whom 

it is addressed. If you have received this e-mail in error, please accept our apologies and notify the 

sender, deleting the e-mail afterwards. Any views or opinions presented are solely those of the e-

mail's author and do not necessarily represent those of Aberdeenshire Council. 

- -dealain air a 

chur, a bhith an seo. Ma tha thu air am post-dealain fhaighinn mar mhearachd, gabh ar leisgeul agus 

cuir fios chun an neach a chuir am post- -

beachdan an neach a chuir am post-

Dheathain. 

www.aberdeenshire.gov.uk
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Storm Otto, 17 February 2023 

Storm Otto on 17 February 2023 was the first named storm of the 2022/2023 storm season. 

The storm was named by the Danish Meteorological Institute and brought gusts of over 

60Kt to parts of northern and eastern Scotland and north-east England. The storm tracked 

rapidly eastwards across northern Scotland before moving across the North Sea toward 

Norway. This was a fairly typical Atlantic winter storm for the UK. 

Impacts 

Thousands of homes across northern Scotland experienced power cuts overnight 16th to 17th. 

The storm caused transport disruption, with trains, buses and ferry services delayed or cancelled, 

and fallen trees blocked many routes in Aberdeenshire. There was some damage to buildings and 

vehicles and over 100 schools were closed in Aberdeenshire. These impacts were fairly typical for 

a named winter storm. Storm Otto then continued east where it caused further weather impacts to 

southern Norway and Sweden, and northern Denmark. 

Weather data 

The analysis chart at 0600UTC 17 February 2023 shows the centre of storm Otto over the 

Northern Isles driving very strong north-westerly winds across Scotland and north-east England. 



The rain-radar image at 0000UTC 17 February 2023 shows heavy rain across western Scotland 

as storm Otto approaches. 



The satellite image at 1127UTC 17 February 2023 shows the storm centre to the west of Norway, 

having tracked rapidly eastwards across the North Sea. 



The map below shows maximum gust speeds from storm Otto on 17 February 2023. The 

strongest winds were across the Western Isles, northern and eastern Scotland and north-east 

England, with gusts of 60 to 70Kt (69 to 81mph). The highest gusts were 72Kt (83mph) at 

Inverbervie, Kincardineshire, 70Kt (81mph) at Tain Range (Ross & Cromarty) and 70Kt (81mph) at 

Lossiemouth (Moray). Further south in England, Emley Moor (West Yorkshire) recorded a gust of 

65Kt (75mph) and Brizlee Wood (Northumberland) a gust of 61Kt (70mph). Winds were 

particularly high across Scotland’s mountain summits with 106Kt (122mph) recorded at Cairngorm 

Summit, 1237 metres above mean sea level (masl). Inverbervie recorded its highest February gust 

on record, in data from 1992.  



The chart below shows hourly maximum gust speeds at Stornoway Airport (Western Isles), 

Lossiemouth (Moray) and Inverbervie (Kincardineshire) from 15 to 19 February 2023. Overall, 

wind gusts from this event were not exceptional and this was a fairly typical Atlantic winter storm 

for the UK. 

Author: Mike Kendon, Met Office National Climate Information Centre 

Last updated 22/02/2023 
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Berwick Wood site visit was commissioned by Northwoods Rewilding Network to assess the conditions 

of waterways and bring a set of recommendations to achieve a potential ecological uplift of the site. 

The site visit was carried out on the 10th of November 2023 by Maja Pepper from River Revivers. 

Weather conditions were optimum - clear, dry and sunny. Flow level was medium. 

Berwick Wood is located north of the town of Hatton of Fintray, near Aberdeen. The main watercourse 

north of Berwick Wood is the River Don.  

The unnamed waterways were given names on this report  Channel 1, 2 & 3 to clarify.  

eft hand bank  always refers to the observer 

looking . 

Map 1: Site geology shows that the brown areas (circled in red) at the pond and the Eastern side of 

Berwick Wood has peat formation which is a partially decomposed mass of semi-carbonised 

vegetation which has grown under waterlogged, anaerobic conditions, usually in bogs or wetland. The 

rest of the areas are principally Banchory Till Formation - gravelly and sandy diamicton composed 

principally of decomposed Neoproterozoic metamorphic rocks and Caledonian igneous rocks. And 

interlayered psammite and semipelite, with subsidiary pelite and sporadic minor calcareous horizons. 
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Map 2: Berwick Wood waterways. Sitka spruce plantation green coloured. Some areas have been 

harvested already. Channel 1 is connected to the pond. Channel 3 discharges into Channel 2. Channel 

1 and 2 are not connected at present. 

Fig. 1: View of the pond that connects to 

Channel 1. (Grid Ref. NJ 84161 18059). 

Fig. 2: View downstream of Channel 1 which 

connects with the pond from Fig.1. It is a 

straightened narrow channel (<1m wide) 

experiencing tunnelling effect due to channel 

incision and tall grass growth. 

Scots pine 

mature stands. 

Channel 1

Channel 2

Channel 3
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Fig. 3: View downstream of the upper section of 

the straightened Channel 2 which flows parallel 

to the previous one but it does not connect to 

the pond. Would benefit from installation of 

wood or brash structures to create sinuosity and 

retain water. 

Fig. 4: View downstream of the lower section of 

the Channel 2. Brash bridge made by the forestry 

for extraction purposes.  

Fig. 5: View downstream of Channel 2. 

Starightened and slow flowing. Stone 

embankment on the right hand bank (in red) 

preventing lateral movement of the channel. 

Recommendation - removal of right hand bank 

embankment and installation of wood and brash 

structures would give more sinuosity and 

encourage water retention. 

Fig. 6: Stands of Scots pine within the Sitka 

spruce plantation. South field has been clear 

felled recently while the north field (behind the 

Scots pine) is still standing. See Map 2. (Grid Ref. 

NJ 84577 18377). 

Recommendation  retain and expand the area 

of mature Scots pine and remove Sitka spruce 

progressively or by clear fell. This will give 

diversity in structure, habitat and dynamism to 

the site. 
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Fig. 7: View upstream of the straightened 

channel 3 (peatland area NE site on the Map 1). 

Recommendation  addition and installation of 

woody structures to increase water retention.  

Fig. 8: Waterlogged anaerobic conditions on the 

upper section of the channel 3.  

Recommendation  possible pond creation. 

Fig. 9: View downstream of Channel 3. Channel 

bed vegetated. No gravel sediments instream. 

Stone embankment on the right hand bank 

preventing lateral movement of the channel. 

Recommendations  partial or total removal of 

the embankment and installation of woody 

brash structures to retain water on site. Possible 

pond creation. 

Fig. 10: Channel 3 confluence with Channel 2. 

Waterlogged conditions. (Grid Ref. NJ 84227 

18078). Possible linked ponds. 

Channel 2

Channel 3
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The restoration recommendations have been selected specifically for Berwick Wood site. A 

conversation with Mhairi Player on site and the accompanied walkover described the landowner

objective is to remove the -native Sitka spruce plantation and replace it with native flora. River 

Revivers agrees with this approach. 

A desk study analysing old maps and the geology of the site has determined the best action to take to 

improve the ecology of Berwick Wood. These actions are summarised below: 

It is highly recommended that deer population is brought down to 

sustainable densities where native trees can establish and natural regeneration could occur 

in the future. There are deer stalkers at present culling deer but effort would need to be 

increased in order to allow native woodland to establish. This could be done in two ways; one 

way is to cull deer and the other is to erect a deer fence to exclude deer from the site. Deer 

culling is usually the preferred option if possible as deer are woodland animals and would exist 

naturally but in much lower numbers. However, it would take longer in time to establish native 

woodland this way.  

This action is 

already happening at present, and the landowners  vision for the future is to replace the whole 

area with native flora. The important action for management to consider in the future is to 

keep on top of the eradication of self-seeded Sitka spruce. This species has an invasive 

character and would start expanding rapidly across the area, especially if the deer numbers 

decrease. Sitka offers much less habitat for native flora or fauna than native trees would.  

From the site visit walkover and desk study (Map1), it 

shows that the area would be peat dominated where currently the waterways are. These 

waterways have been modified in the past becoming man-made drainage systems. What it 

shows at present is that the waterways are straightened and ditches were dug draining the 

water from the land and planting non-native conifers for commercial purposes. The most 

suitable option for an ecological improvement would be to retain as much water on the site 

as possible. This could be done by blocking the existing old ditches by installing natural 

materials instream, such as large and course woody structures (LWS, CWS), brash, logs, etc. 

Different techniques should be used by each site. Given that the felling is taking place on site, 

the material from harvesting could be utilised for instream work. This action would increase 

the amount of aquatic and terrestrial invertebrates, having a chain effect increasing thus other 

wildlife associated with water, such as amphibians, birds and mammal species and their 

densities.  

Creation of deeper and shallower sections to retain more water on land, rather 

than encouraging the water to drain from the land as fast and straight as possible. 

Straightened channels exacerbate peak flows events and increase flooding in downstream 

reaches. The ponds could be made and connected in-between the existing ditches. It would 

be expected that some ponds might dry out in drought conditions, but this is a natural process 

and adds to habitat mosaic. With successful (leaky) damming, in time the water table may rise 

and the land may become capable of retaining and expanding the amount of water on the 

land and seep it downstream slowly, aiding drought events. 
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Procedure Minutes Direct 

seeding

Minutes 

transplanting

Harvesting/Bed 

Average

Total Annual 

delivery Hours

Seeding to tray 

prior to 

germination 

and 

transplanting

Packing - 

Boxes, Salad 

bags etc

Total Annual 

Hours for the 

Market garden 

area

Seedlings per tray 8m

Bed Clearance 0h 15m 0h 15m

Bed Preparation 0h 20m 0h 20m

Direct seeding 0h 10m

Transplanting 0h 20m

Watering/Covering 0h 15m 0h 15m

In Crop Weeding per crop 1h 0m 1h 0m

Harvesting/week/ veg 0h 20m

Packing /box 0h 10m

Delivering Boxes to Clients/ year 90h 0m

Delivering to Hub / year 20h 0m

Delivery to Cafes/ year 80h 0m

Total individual Bed Hours 2h 0m 2h 10m 0h 20m 190h 0m 0h 8m 0h 10m

Number of times per season 100 250 600 1 300 1500

Total hours for season 200h 541h 40m 200h 190h 40h 250h 1421h 40m

Area of Outdoor Area 0.47

Total Hours /ha /Season 3,025

Outdoor Market Garden Area (ha)

Indicative Hours /ha



Outdoor Market Garden Area 1,421 

3 Caterpillar Tunnels + 1 Poly Tunnel 145 

Orchard Area 25 

Pigs 131 

add allowance for forestry work 

add allowance for admin (market 
garden) 

1 x Full-time Equivalent 

0.048

145

Under Cover Market Garden Area (ha)

Indicative Total Hours
































